


 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

October 10, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 2  

 

 

6. COUN CIL, STAFF AND  OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal 

action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

6B. City Operations Update ï City staff 

6C. Additional Reports ï Agency partners 
 

7. COUN CIL BUSIN ESS 

7A. Rising Sun Pavement Project (Federal Project No. STPL-5187(011) ï Award of Contract 

 Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 61-2018 authorizing the City 

Manager to: 

1. Amend the Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing Project (Federal Project No. STPL-5187(011)) 

of the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget to allocate to the Project $3,500.00 in revenue from PCWA 

for utility relocation expenses and to reflect a $7,100.00 in Federal funding. 

2. Award a construction contract to Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. in the amount of 

$157,700.85 and authorize the City Manager to execute change orders up to the amended 

budget. 

3. Authorize the City Manager to engage Coastland Engineering to perform construction 

management and inspection services not to exceed $12,000.00. 
 

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this agenda item 

or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 
 

9. AD JOURN MEN T 
 

 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted   

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted  prior to action being initiated  in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action 

in court, you may be limited  to raising only those issues you or someone else raised  at a public hearing described  in this 

notice/ agenda, or in written correspondence delivered  to the City Clerk of the City of Col fax at, or prior to, said  public hearing. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes September 26, 2018 
 

6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, September 26, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CLOSED SESSION 
1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 6:30PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items 

There was no public comment. 
1D. Closed Session 

Conference with Legal Counsel ɀ Existing Litigation. Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1): People of the State of California vs Church of Modern Medicine, Placer 
County Superior Court Case #SCV41724.  
 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation. Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): One potential case. 
 

Closed session ended at 6:51PM. 
 

2 OPEN SESSION 
2A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 
2B. Report from Closed Session 

City Attorney Cabral noted there were two items discussed but no reportable actions taken 
during Closed Session.   

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Tom Parnham, Colfax resident, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2D. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Stockwin, the City Council approved 
the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

3 PRESENTATION 
3A. Service Proclamation 

Sergeant Ty Conners, Colfax Substation Commander 
Sergeant Conners honored Deputy Robert Clark who has served in Colfax for several years with 
dedication and a commitment to be part of the community. 
On behalf of the entire Council, Mayor Stockwin read a letter of thanks to Deputy Clark and 
presented him with a Certificate of Appreciation. 
The public affirmed their thanks to Deputy Clark with enthusiastic applause. 
 
 

ITEM  4A



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes September 26, 2018 
 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 
4A. Minutes - Regular Meeting August 22, 2018 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 22, 2018. 
4B. Cash Summary:  August 2018 

Recommendation:  Accept and file. 
4C. Sierra Oaks Estates Sewer Easements 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 54-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute 
quitclaim deeds for existing sewer easements and accept new deeds for sewer easements 
ÆÏÒ ÔÈÅ #ÉÔÙȭÓ ÓÅ×ÅÒ ÍÁÉÎ ÔÈÒÏÕÇÈ ÔÈÅ 3ÉÅÒÒÁ Oaks Estates Subdivision. 

4D. Bureau Veritas Contract for Building Inspection Services 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 55-2018 authorizing the City Manager to extend the 
contract with Bureau Veritas for building inspection services on an as needed basis not to 
exceed $72,000 and subject to renewal June 30, 2019. 
 

City Manager Heathcock asked to pull Item 4C, Sierra Oaks Estates Sewer Easements as there 
were documents missing in the agenda packet.  Staff plans to bring the item back for Council 
consideration at the next meeting. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved items 4A, 4B, and 4D 
 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Sonja Conklin, 225 Vista Ave 

 Ms. Conklin spoke in support of the CUP and Variance that will be addressed later 
during the Public Hearing for N. 120 Foresthill Street. 

 She also spoke in favor of allowing Golden State Patient Care to reopen. 
Jim Dion, Owner of Golden State Patient Care  

 Mr. Dion gave Council his understanding of the history of the Cannabis ordinances 
which Council has adopted as they pertain to licensing of his retail cannabis 
business.  He demanded the Council reinstate his license. 

Several members of the public spoke in favor of reinstating the Golden State Patient Care (GSPC) 
temporary business license. 

Dale, Dutch Flat resident 
Frank, Colfax resident 
Bob Dion, unknown residence 
Lynda Locatel, Colfax business owner 
Melissa, Colfax resident 
Lynnie Russ?, representing Nevada County retail cannabis business  
Cory Young, GSPC employee 
Stan Campbell, GSPC employee 
Tim Dion, unknown residence 
Linda Levi?, Colfax resident 
Shirley Alexander, area resident 
Jessica, unknown residence 
Andy Cabe, Colfax resident 
Steve Dion, unknown residence 
Karyn Furry, area residence 
Jule?, Colfax resident? 

ITEM  4A



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes September 26, 2018 
 

Donna Dion, unknown residence 
Several members of the public spoke in favor of placing the issue of retail cannabis business 
licensing on a future agenda. 

Sharon Conners, area resident 
Wendy Dion, GSPC employee 
Tom Parnham, Colfax resident 
Annie Aubrie, retail cannabis business applicant 
Joe Fatula, Colfax resident 

One member of the public spoke in opposition to reinstating the Golden State Patient Care 
temporary business license. 

Bill Bean, Colfax resident 
 

Some speakers asked why the City is allowing the unpermitted and unlicensed organization 
ÃÁÌÌÉÎÇ ÉÔÓÅÌÆ Ȱ4ÈÅ #ÈÕÒÃÈ ÏÆ -ÏÄÅÒÎ -ÅÄÉÃÉÎÅ ɉ#/--Ɋȱ ÔÏ ÃÏÎÔÉÎÕÅ ÔÏ function.  The Mayor 
explained the City has initiated litigation against COMM and will be in Court next Thursday, 
October 4, 2018 to obtain an injunction and close the business.  

 

6 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 

6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 
Councilmember Harvey 
 Councilmember Harvey represented the City at the Placer County Transportation 

Agency.  
Councilmember Douglass 
 Councilmember Douglass has helped to organize a Candidate Night forum at the 

Sierra Vista Community Center to be moderated by the League of Women Voters 
on Tuesday October 2, 2018. 

 He represented the City at the Pioneer Energy, SACOG and Project Go board 
meetings. 

 He supported the community by attending the Chamber of Commerce Mixer and 
Railroad Days. 

 Councilmember Douglass also serves as a member of the Sierra Vista Community 
Center board.  Sierra Vista Community Center always welcomes volunteers.  It is a 
great place to get involved in the community. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
 Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza had nothing to report. 

Mayor Stockwin 
 Mayor Stockwin thanked Fred and Reene Abbott for organizing Railroad Days 

which was a great event. 
 He also thanked Foxey McCleary for organizing the Art Walk events this summer. 
 Mayor Stockwin represented the City at the Mosquito and Vector Control District 

board meeting.  
 He mentioned results from a State-wide drug-use report which indicates cannabis 

use among young people has decreased in the last two years.  He believes the City 
is going in the wrong direction with cannabis by stopping the cannabis permit 
application process. 

 
 

 

ITEM  4A
3 of 7



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes September 26, 2018 
 

6B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 
 City Manager Heathcock stated staff has completed the process for a second lien on 

the historic hotel for a total of $98,000. 
 The Rising Sun Pavement Project bids actually came in under budget.  Staff plans to 

bring the award of contract to Council for approval in October. 
  

6C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Chief Brian Eagan, Colfax Fire Department Battalion Chief 
 Chief Eagan explained the volunteer firefighters are in a training program to 

become certified as a rescue unit.  They will become a regional resource for all 
types of rescue operations. 

 The fuel reduction program was put on hold during the worst of the fire season 
and will continue soon. 

 Chief Eagan reminded everyone to remember burn season is still closed. 
Mayor Stockwin commended the fire crews for the beautiful appearance of the landfill ɀ it looks 
like a park! 

Officer Chris Nave, Public Information Officer, Gold Run California Highway Patrol 
 Officer Nave cautioned motorists to be aware of many motorcyclists travelling to 

Reno for Street Vibrations this weekend.  
 (Å ÁÎÎÏÕÎÃÅÄ ÔÈÉÓ ÉÓ Ȱ#ÈÉÌÄ 0ÁÓÓÅÎÇÅÒ 3ÁÆÅÔÙ 7ÅÅËȱȢ  #ÈÅÃË ÔÏ ÅÎÓÕÒÅ your car seat 

is properly installed.  
Sergeant Ty Conners, Colfax Substation Commander, Placer County Sheriff’s Office 
 Sergeant Conners thanked Chief Eagan and CalFire for their heroic efforts during 

the fire season.   
The public responded with applause. 

 Sergeant Conners reported the August crime statistics, which are down 
significantly, indicate the deputies are very proactive in keeping Colfax safe. 

 (Å ÁÎÎÏÕÎÃÅÄ ÔÈÅ 0ÌÁÃÅÒ #ÏÕÎÔÙ 3ÈÅÒÉÆÆȭÓ /ÆÆÉÃÅ ×ÉÌÌ ÂÅ ÃÏÎÄÕÃÔÉÎÇ Á ÆÏÏÄ ÄÒÉÖÅ ÔÏ 
help feed senior citizens in need during October.  He asked if City Hall could be a 
collection point. 

Mayor Stockwin thanked Sgt. Conners for response to a parking issue on Rising Sun.  He also 
reminded everyone the Rising Sun project will require the road to be closed for two days and 
detours will be in place. 

Frank Klein, President, Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce 
 Mr. Klein announced the next mixer will be held at the VFW and hosted by Air 

Medical Care. 
 He thanked the Abbotts for organizing Railroad Days. 
 Board elections will be soon and the Chamber is looking for volunteers. 

Sharon Conners and Foxey McCleary, Sierra Vista Community Center  
 Ms. McCleary invited everyone to the first Sunday breakfasts at VFW and the Open 

Studio events on Tuesdays and Wednesdays.  
 Ms. Conners listed the events which will be hosted in October at the Sierra Vista 

Community Center including Candidates Night on October 2nd, The Food Bank on 
October 5th, Harvest and Craft Fair on October 6th, Bingo on October 7th, Flea 
Market on October 20th, and the Food Train on October 21st. 
 

ITEM  4A
4 of 7





City of Colfax 6 
City Council Minutes September 26, 2018 
 

8B. Grant Funding for Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Improvements 
Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 58-2018 authorizing the 
City Manager to sign and file a Financial Assistance Application for a financing agreement 
for the State Water Resources Board for the planning, design, and construction of Sewer 
Collection and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements. 

City Manager Heathcock explained the City has contacted the State Water Board for assistance in 
reducing the financial burden of the high sewer costs.  The Water Board has indicated Colfax is 
qualified for 100% grants of up to $6,500,000.  Staff is requesting Council authorize pursuit of 
the grants. 
Councilmember Mendoza asked who would be working on the grant application. 
City Manager Heathcock replied staff will be taking the lead on the application process and have 
contacted Jim Fletter of Wood Rodgers Engineering to assist with technical advice.  The costs to 
the City will be about $3,000.  After the grant is approved, all expenses will be covered by the 
grant. 
Councilmember Harvey asked if the grants include work to reduce the Inflow and Infiltration 
(I&I) into the system. 
City Manager Heathcock affirmed the grant application proposals would include reducing the 
added burden to the plant from winter runoff.  Mr. Fletter worked on the original I&I project 
which significantly reduced these flows.  A similar project now would save the City significant 
costs by eliminating the need to build more pipelines to the plant. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, and a second by Councilmember Harvey, Council 
approved Resolution 58-2018. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

8C. Donation of Antique Fire Engines to the Colfax Firefighter Association 
Staff Presentation:  Brian Eagan, Colfax Fire Battalion Chief 
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 59-2018 authorizing 
donation of two antique fire trucks to the Colfax Firefighter Association. 

Chief Eagan explained the Volunteer Fire Department owns two antique vehicles, one of which 
the Colfax Firefighters Association (CFA) has invested time and money into restoring to use in 
parades and other events.  The other does not run.  The CFA has requested the City donate the 
titles to CFA so the organization can restore both vehicles.  Chief Eagan recommends the transfer 
of title. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked for more information. 
Roger Bresnahan, CFA Treasurer stated this will be a long term project.  It took two years to get 
the first truck running.  The trucks foster pride in the City and serve as a good recruiting tool for 
the Volunteer Firefighters. 
Councilmember Harvey asked what will happen if the VFA can no longer store or maintain the 
vehicles. 
Mayor Stockwin recommended adding a clause to the resolution to give the City a first right of 
refusal should the VFA determine they could no longer keep the vehicles, Ȱthe Colfax Firefighters 
Association agrees the titles of the two vehicles will not be transferred to a third party without 
first offering the City of Colfax the opportunity to reacquire the antiquesȱ. 
Tim Ryan, Colfax City Treasurer, asked how VFA receives its funding. 

ITEM  4A
6 of 7



City of Colfax 7 
City Council Minutes September 26, 2018 
 

Mr. Bresnahan replied VFA is a non-profit which relies on donations and fundraisers, principally 
ÔÈÅ -ÅÍÏÒÉÁÌ $ÁÙ "ÏÏÔ $ÒÉÖÅ ÁÎÄ Á ÇÒÁÎÔ ÆÒÏÍ 2ÉÅÂÅȭÓ !ÕÔÏ 0ÁÒÔÓȢ 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, and a second by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved Resolution 59-2018 as amended. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

9 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Douglass mentioned the upcoming Harvest Fair on October 6, 2018 at the Sierra 
Vista Community Center from 9AM ɀ 3PM. 
Councilmember Douglass stated he misunderstood the implications of his vote for the Cannabis 
Permitting Update item which was on the August 8, 2018 agenda.  He would like to bring the 
item back for discussion at a future Council meeting. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza also asked staff to bring the item back to Council for clarification. 
Mayor Stockwin affirmed the item should be on a future agenda. 
City Manager Heathcock replied he will place it on the soonest agenda possible, perhaps on 
October 10, 2018. 
 

10 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 9:23PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 10th day of October, 2018 
 

ITEM  4A







erstauss
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2 (a)









7 of 38





9 of 38



erstauss
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2 (b)







13 of 38







ITEM  4B



erstauss
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 3 (a)



ITEM  4B
18 of 38



ITEM  4B
19 of 38





erstauss
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 3 (b)



ITEM  4B
22 of 38







ITEM  4B

erstauss
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 4



ITEM  4B
26 of 38



ITEM  4B
27 of 38





erstauss
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5 (a)





ITEM  4B



ITEM  4B





erstauss
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5 (b)



ITEM  4B
35 of 38



ITEM  4B
36 of 38





ITEM  4B
38 of 38



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE OCTOBER 10, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer 

DATE: September 20, 2018 
SUBJECT: Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing Project (Federal Project No. STPL-5187(011) –

Award of Contract 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $188,625.00 FROM FUND:  250/RSTP 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 61-2018 authorizing the City Manager 
to: 

1. Amend the Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing Project (Federal Project No STPL-5187(011)) of the 
Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget to allocate to the Project $3,500.00 in revenue from PCWA for utility 
relocation expenses and to reflect a $7,100.00 reduction in Federal funding. 

2. Award a construction contract to Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. in the amount of 
$157,700.85 and authorize the City Manager to execute change orders up to the amended budget. 

3. Authorize the City Manager to engage Coastland Engineering to perform construction management 
and inspection services not to exceed $12,000.00. 

 

SUMMARY:  
The Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing Project (“Project”) is included in the current Fiscal Year 2018-2019 
Budget and Capital Improvement Project List.  Rising Sun Road is classified as a major collector in the City of 
Colfax serving residential neighborhoods, commercial areas, schools and outlying areas of the County.  It is one 
of the most heavily traveled roads in the City. 
 

The scope of work for the Project includes resurfacing up to 1,400-linear feet of travel lanes, excluding the 
shoulders, between Ben Taylor Road and West Grass Valley Street including: dig-out repairs of failing pavement; 
milling existing pavement down to competent underlying pavement or subgrade; filling milled areas with new 
asphalt pavement over an area of approximately 35,000-sf; raising surface utilities to grade; and new pavement 
markings. 
 

In accordance with the Federal funding requirements the City has provided a certification package to Caltrans 
and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) that all right-of-way and utility conflicts are cleared, submitted 
a Request for Authorization (RFA), and obtained FHWA authorization (also known as an E76) before advertising 
the Project for bids. 
 

On May 23, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution 36-2018 authorizing Staff to advertise the Project for 
bids.  Bids were advertised through the Auburn Journal, the City’s website, the CIPList.com website, and through 
local contractor’s/builder’s exchanges.  A total of six contractors registered to receive the bid documents.  The 
bids were due on September 20, 2018, at 2:00 p.m.  The City received six bids for the construction of the 
project.  Staff reviewed the bids and determined that bidders were responsible and submitted responsive bids.  
The City received the following bids: 

ITEM  7A



2 

 

 

Bidder Name Bid Amount 

Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt $157,700.85 

Vintage Paving $168,107.90 

Simpson & Simpson $178,363.00 

Darren Taylor Construction $180,345.56 

Western Engineering $185,550.00 

B&M Builders $205,172.64 

Engineer’s Estimate $185,000.00 
 

The lowest bid of $157,700.85 is within the Project’s budget of $185,000 for construction.  Central Valley 
Engineering & Asphalt, Inc., has been determined to be the lowest responsible and responsive bidder. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The total adopted project budget was $225,000 with funding from the Regional Surface Transportation (RSTP), 
Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP), RSTP/STBGP Exchange, and local-road funds sources 
identified in the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Budget (Fund 250).  After further review, the available RSTP (washed) 
funding was determined to be $7,100 less for a total budget of $221,400.  The reimbursement for PCWA utility 
relocation costs was not anticipated in the adopted budget but is shown below because the relocation of PCWA 
valve covers is required to perform the work and is included in the construction contract. 
 

Project Funding: Original Current 

RSTP/STBG (Federal) $  88,500.00 $  81,400.00 

RSTP/STBG Exchange (washed) $100,000.00 $100,000.00 

Local- Road Funds $  36,500.00 $  36,500.00 

PCWA Relocation Reimbursement $                       - $   3,500.00 

Total Project Funding $225,000.00 $221,400.00 
 

Estimated Project Costs  

Environmental/Engineering/Design/Amin $  31,867.08 

Construction $157,700.85 

Construction Contingency (~12%) $  18,924.00 

Construction Management and Inspection $  12,000.00 

Total Project Expenses $220,491.00 
 

Streets and Roads Fund (250) was used for the environmental, engineering and funding administration costs.  
The majority of the construction will be funded by RTSP/ STBGP and RSTP/STBGP Exchange. 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 61-2018 with agreement 

ITEM  7A





Resolution 61-2018 Rising Sun Award of Contract Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, the lowest responsible and responsive bidder was determined to be Central 
Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. with a bid amount of $157,700.85; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the total estimated project cost including the environmental, engineering design, 
funding administration, low bid for construction, a  construction contingency of 
approximately $18,924.00, and construction management and inspection costs of 
$12,000.00,  totaling $221,400.00.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax authorizes the 
City Manager to: 

1. Amend the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget to allocate $3,500 in revenue from PCWA 
for utility relocation expenses to the Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing Project 
and to reflect a $7,100.00 reduction to the Federal funding. 

2. Award a construction contract in the form attached to Central Valley Engineering & 
Asphalt, Inc. in the amount of $157,700.85 and authorize the City Manager to 
execute change orders up to the amended project budget. 

3. Authorize the City Manager to engage Coastland Engineering to perform 
construction management and inspection of the construction of the project not to 
exceed $12,000.  
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 10th day of October 2018, 
by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:                                                                                                                                 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  7A





1810011 Central Valley Asphalt, Rising Sun Repaving Project Page 2 

 

for the Services for the month invoiced. As long as the Contractor performs the Services to the 

satisfaction of the City, the City shall pay the Contractor an all inclusive compensation that shall 

not exceed the amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change 

order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring additional 

compensation are performed. City shall pay Contractor no later than thirty (30) days after approval 

of the monthly invoice by City’s staff. 

 

B. The Contractor's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all indirect 

and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred by the Contractor and 

used in carrying out or completing the Services. Payments shall be in accordance with the 

payment schedule established in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits.   

  

C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating charges 

billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right to perform an audit of 

the Contractor's relevant records pertaining to the charges.    

 

D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they are 

invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  

 

Section 4.  Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 

 

City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Contractor to perform the Services 

described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall 

therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to perform all Services 

under this Agreement.  All Services performed by Contractor under this Agreement shall be in a 

skillful, workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable legal requirements and shall meet the 

standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in Contractor’s field of 

expertise. 

 

Section 5.  Indemnification. 

 

Contractor shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to defend, the 

City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, 

costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful 

misconduct of Contractor and/or its agents in the performance of the Services. This indemnity does 

not apply to liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other 

loss, arising from the sole negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City 

or its agents, servants employees or independent contractors other than Contractor who are directly 

responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, employees 

or volunteers 

 

 

 

 

ITEM  7A





1810011 Central Valley Asphalt, Rising Sun Repaving Project Page 4 

 

D. Policy Endorsements.  Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be 

endorsed with the following provisions: 

 

 1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be named as 

insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and defenses of claims arising 

from activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor.  

 

 2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured who is 

seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, except with 

respect to the insurer’s limits of liability. 

 

 3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected or 

appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance maintained by 

the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers 

shall be in excess of this insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 

 4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in coverage or in 

limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been provided to the City. 

 

  5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not affect 

coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, or 

agents. 

 

E. Professional Liability Coverage.  If required by the City, Contractor shall also take out and 

maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not less than $1 

million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed with a provision stating 

that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except 

after thirty (30) days written notice has been provided to the City.  

 

F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements.  Prior to commencing the Services under this 

Agreement, Contractor shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the required 

insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named.  This documentation shall 

be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include all required endorsements and 

verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This Agreement shall not be effective until the 

required insurance forms and endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  

Failure to provide these forms within the time period specified by City may result in the 

award of this Agreement to another Contractor should the City, in its sole discretion, decide to 

do so.  Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times during 

the term of this Agreement. 

 

G. Deductible and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be 

declared to and approved by City. 

 

 

ITEM  7A
8 of 80





1810011 Central Valley Asphalt, Rising Sun Repaving Project Page 6 

 

Section 12.  Termination of Services. 

 

City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and this 

Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Contractor.  Upon receipt of notice of termination, 

Contractor shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  Contractor shall be 

entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up to the date of receipt of the 

written notice of termination. Contractor shall not be entitled to payment for any Services 

performed after the receipt of the notice of termination unless such payment is authorized in 

advance in writing by the City. 

 

Should Contractor fail to perform any of the obligations required of Contractor within the time and 

in the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should Contractor violate any of 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate this Agreement by providing 

Contractor with seven (7) days written notice of such termination.  The Contractor shall be 

compensated for all Services performed prior to the date of receipt of the notice of termination. 

However, the City may deduct from the compensation which may be owed to Contractor the 

amount of damage sustained or estimated by City resulting from Contractor’s breach of this 

Agreement.  

 

Contractor’s obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive termination, 

and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of Sections 5 and 6.  

 

Section 13.  Independent Contractor. 

 

Contractor shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee of City.  

Contractor has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of the means and 

methods of performing the Services.  Contractor shall receive no premium or enhanced pay for 

Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Contractor receive holiday pay, sick leave, 

administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually expended in the performance of the 

Services.  It is intended by the parties that Contractor shall not be eligible for benefits and shall 

receive no compensation from the City, except as expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Contractor 

shall submit completed W-9 and Report of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this 

Agreement and prior to the payment of any compensation hereunder. 

 

Section 14.  Ownership of Documents. 

 

Within thirty (30) days after the Contractor substantially completes performance of the Services, 

or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall deliver to 

the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by Contractor's in the 

performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that all such files, records, 

materials and documents are the property of the City and not the property of the Contractor. All 

finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents and other writings prepared by and for 

Contractor, its officers, employees and agents in the course of performing the Services shall become 

the sole property of the City upon payment to Contractor for the Services, and the City shall have 

ITEM  7A







1810011 Central Valley Asphalt, Rising Sun Repaving Project Page 9 

 

Section 20.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. 

 

This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive expression of 

the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  All 

prior written and oral communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and 

representations, are superseded in total by this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or 

extended from time to time only by written agreement of the parties hereto. 

 

Section 21.  Time of the Essence. 

 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services. The Contractor will perform its Services 

with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices and shall devote 

such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their timely completion.   

 

Section 22.  Written Notification. 

 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 

communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing 

and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows.  

Either party may change its address by notifying the other party in writing of the change of address. 

Notice shall be deemed communicated within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed 

within the State of California as provided in this Section. 

 

If to City:   City of Colfax 

     33 S. Main Street 

     Colfax, CA 95713 

 

If to Contractor:   Central Valley Engineering 

     216 Kenroy Ln 

     Roseville, CA  95678 

 

Section 23.  Execution. 

 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and 

the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one original 

counterpart is signed by both parties hereto.  In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to 

produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

 

Section 24. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the 

respective parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

ITEM  7A





Rising Sun Construction Contract ITEM  7A
15 of 80







Rising Sun Construction Contract ITEM  7A
18 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract ITEM  7A



Rising Sun Construction Contract ITEM  7A



Rising Sun Construction Contract





Rising Sun Construction Contract





Rising Sun Construction Contract



Rising Sun Construction Contract



Rising Sun Construction Contract

27 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

28 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

29 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

30 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract



Rising Sun Construction Contract

32 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

33 of 80







Rising Sun Construction Contract

36 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

37 of 80





Rising Sun Construction Contract



Rising Sun Construction Contract

40 of 80





Rising Sun Construction Contract





Rising Sun Construction Contract

44 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

45 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract



Rising Sun Construction Contract

47 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

48 of 80





Rising Sun Construction Contract

50 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

51 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

52 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract





Rising Sun Construction Contract



Rising Sun Construction Contract



Rising Sun Construction Contract

57 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

58 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

59 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

60 of 80





Rising Sun Construction Contract

62 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

63 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

64 of 80





Rising Sun Construction Contract

66 of 80





Rising Sun Construction Contract

68 of 80





Rising Sun Construction Contract

70 of 80







Rising Sun Construction Contract

73 of 80









Rising Sun Construction Contract

77 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract

78 of 80



Rising Sun Construction Contract



Rising Sun Construction Contract

80 of 80


	00A 181010 Agenda
	004A 180926 Minutes
	004B Sierra Oaks Sewer Easements
	181010 SR Sierra Oaks Sewer Easements
	Resolution 60-2018 Sierra Oaks Easements
	Attachments to Staff Report

	07A Rising Sun Construction Contract
	181010 SR Rising Sun Road Award of Contract
	Resolution 61-2018 Rising Sun Const Contract Award
	181011 Contractor Agreement
	Central Valley Exhibit A




